
                                                                                                                      
Division of Academic and Student Affairs 
Office of Undergraduate Courses & Curricula 
oucc.dasa.ncsu.edu 
courses-curricula@ncsu.edu 

Campus Box 7105 
211A Park Shops 
Raleigh, NC 27695-7105 
P: 919.515.9769 
 

Council on Undergraduate Education 2016-2017                             March 24, 2017 
                        Talley Student Union 4140 
                       1:30pm-3:00pm 

Call to Order 1:30pm 
 Welcome and Instructions, Chair Peggy Domingue 
 Remarks from Associate Vice Provost, Dr. Barbara Kirby 
 Approval of CUE February 22, 2017 Minutes 
 
New Business 
 Course and Curricular Business 

Courses New to GEP 
Presenter Reviewers GEP Category 

Under review 
GEP Action  Notes 

Outing Nowel, Allen, Knowles IP HON 313 Reading Machines New Course 
Outing Keene, Lee, Schmidt IP HON 340 Religion and Freedom New Course 
Rabah  Levine, Ashwell, Skrzecz IP, NS BIO 230 The Science of Studying Dinosaurs New Course 
Knowles Rabah, Joines, Ozturk GK, IP FLF 212 French: Language, Culture, and 

Technology 
New to GK, *up 
for IP review 

Gilmartin Parker, Ahwell, Sills USD, IP SW 290 The Development of Social Welfare and 
Social Work in the U.S. 

New to USD and 
IP 

 
Courses for GEP Category - Review 

Presenter Reviewers GEP Category 
Under Review 

GEP Action Notes 

Parker Gilmartin, Levine, 
Lee 

NS ENT 203 An Introduction to the 
Honey Bee and Beekeeping 

*Major Changes: SLO, grading, and term 
offering. Up for review. 

Outing Ash, Skrzecz, 
Allen 

USD, VPA MUS 210 Introduction to 
Popular Music: 1950s-1970s 

*Major Changes: SLO, description, and title. 

Outing Keene, Rabah, 
Gilmartin 

USD, VPA MUS 211 Introduction to 
Popular Music: 1980s-present 

*Major Changes: SLO, description, and title. 

 
Special Topics GEP 

Presenter Reviewers GEP Category 
Under review 

GEP Action  Notes 

Outing Nowel, Allen, Knowles HUM HON 293 001 Monstrosity, Madness, and 
Marginality  

1st offering 

Outing Keene, Lee, Schmidt SS HON 295 001 Fraud, Corruption, and Business 1st offering 
Outing  Levine, Ashwell, 

Skrzecz 
IP HON 296 001 Big History: Cosmos, Earth, Life, 

and Humanity  
1st offering 

Outing  Rabah, Joines, Ozturk IP HON 296 002 Hip Hop and Civic Engagement  1st offering 
Outing Parker, Ahwell, Sills IP HON 296 003 Philosophy of Research 1st offering 
Outing Sills, Nowel, Parker IP HON 296 004 Science, Psi, Sasquatch, and 

Spirits  
1st offering 

Outing Keene, Levine, Joines IP HON 296 005 The Nile Project: History, Music, 
and Culture 

1st offering 

Outing Ozturk, Allen, Gilmartin IP HON 296 006 Living in Genetically Engineered 
World 

1st offering 

Outing Lee, Joines, Schmidt VPA HON 299 001 Music in the Celtic World  Final offering, 
becoming permanent  

*Changes to course approved by UCCC.  
SLO= Student Learning Outcomes  

Notes:  
• All linked course actions are viewable in CIM.  
• To view actions, please click on the hyperlink. You may need to use your Unity ID to log in.  
• If you experience issues logging in, please go to https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseadmin/ and type the course prefix 

and number into the search bar. 

https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/12850/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/13178/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/13723/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/5740/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/5740/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/5184/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/5184/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/2430/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/2430/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9139/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9139/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9250/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9250/index.html&step=tcadiff
https://next-catalog.ncsu.edu/courseadmin/


 Division of Academic and Student Affairs 
Office of Undergraduate Courses & Curricula 
oucc.dasa.ncsu.edu 
courses-curricula@ncsu.edu 

Campus Box 7105 
211A Park Shops 
Raleigh, NC 27695-7105 
P: 919.515.9769 
 

Council on Undergraduate Education 2016-2017                                             February 17, 2017 
                                                                                                                                  Talley Student Union 4140 

               Call to Order: 1:35 PM 
 
 
Members Present: Chair Peggy Domingue, Chris Ashwell, Karen Keene, Alice Lee (Proxy), Hatice Ozturk, Erin Sills, David 
Gilmartin, Kim Outing, James Knowles, Tania Allen, Adam Skrzecz, Jeff Joines, Cynthia Levine, Andy Nowel, Martha Reiskind 
(proxy FP) 
Members Absent:, Tim Petty, Ghada Rabah, Sarah Ash, Ingrid Schmidt, Frederick Parker 

 

Ex-Officio Members Present: Li Marcus, Lexi Hergeth, Dr. Barbara Kirby, Erin Dixon, Melissa Williford 
Guests:  

 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 Remarks from Chair Chair Peggy Domingue - Welcomed the committee and proxy. Reminded members that the focus of 

CUE is General Education, courses have been approved through UCCC for content. 
 Remarks from Dr. Barbara Kirby, Associate Vice Provost- Reiterated chair’s comments and encouraged members to ask 

questions if they have them. 
 Approval of the Minutes from January 20, 2017. – Approved Unanimously 

o Discussion:  The minutes were presented and approved without further discussion. Motion to approve by member 
Chris Ashwell.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 

 Courses being dropped from HUM GEP list and Special Topics Second Offering- Approved Unanimously 
Member Chris Ashwell presented the Consent Agenda.  
 

New to GEP 
 

 ENG 275 Literature and War: (HUM, GK) - Approved Unanimously 
Discussion: Presented by member James Knowles. Member complemented the clarity in the documentation showing 
how the objectives are met.  
  

 NTR 210 Introduction to Community Food Security: (USD, IP) -Approved Unanimously 
Discussion: Presented by proxy Martha Reiskind. Member complimented the variety of interviews for the IP category 
and how thorough the syllabus is.  
 

 PHI 347 Neuroscience and Philosophy: (HUM, IP) -Approved Unanimously 
Discussion: Presented by member David Gilmartin.  

 
 SW 201 Introduction to Social Work: (USD) -Approved Unanimously 

Discussion: Presented by member David Gilmartin. Member asked if there is an expectation that the description should 
indicate GEP categories. Chair used this as an example of information UCCC approved in the description. Member 
discussed that UCCC does not look for GEP requirements and would not know to look for this. Members discussed the 
catalog indicates with GEP requirements courses will meet. Dr. Kirby said this may be something to bring back to 
UCCC to look at catalog descriptions to make sure they relate to the course and reflect how the GEP categories are 
met and explained that the catalog description is not required to indicate GEP categories.  
  

GEP Review 
 

 ANS 105 Introduction to Companion Animal Science : (NS) – Approved Unanimously 
Discussion: Presented by member Chris Ashwell. No further discussion.  

 



Discussion: Dr. Kirby reminded the committee that NTR was one of the test courses the committee used as a model for the IP 
category and encouraged using this as an example for anyone needing one. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 1:49 PM 

Respectfully submitted by Lexi Hergeth  















































































































































































































HON 296 (006) Spring 2017  
Living in a Genetically Engineered World 

Fred Gould 
Spring 2017, 3 Credits 

Mon/Weds  4:30-5:45PM 
 Gardner Hall--Room 2321 

 
Email: Fred_Gould@ncsu.edu   Office phone: 919-515-1647 (919-832-8633) 
Office: Room 1552 Thomas Hall   Office hours: by appointment 
 
Course Description: Since 1996 most US citizens have been consuming genetically engineered foods, 
but there is strong opposition to these crops in the US and globally. Today you can buy genetically 
engineered fish in pet stores and it is possible to make genetically engineered dogs and cats. 
Researchers are developing engineered mosquitoes to eliminate malaria and save endangered species. 
Soon it will be possible to make engineered humans. This course will provide students with the basic 
genetics background to understand what can and cannot be done with genetic engineering and what the 
uncertainties are. We will use sci fi films, ethics literature, and provocative media pieces to frame 
discussions on how genetic engineering could impact our future and what actions could be taken to 
influence what that future looks like. 
 
Prerequisite: No prerequisites. Restricted to University Honors Program students. Open to other students 
by permission of the UHP. 
Corequisite: None. 
Enrollment restriction: None, other than as listed above. 
 
Course Materials: 
  
Merchants of Doubt: How a Handful of Scientists Obscured the Truth on Issues from Tobacco Smoke to 
Global Warming. Naomi Oreskes   About $10. 
The Honest Broker: Making Sense of Science in Policy and Politics.  About $30 
(Tomorrow's Table: Organic Farming, Genetics, and the Future of Food. Pamela C. Ronald and R. W. 
Adamchak  About $10-$18.) 
 
Format and Policies: 
Format: I will give some short informal lectures to frame topics and to ensure that everyone understands 
certain technical materials. We will also have guests and activities. However, the class format will mostly 
be discussion of readings and videos. The course’s success depends on your careful reading and 
participation in class and on-line discussion. Discussion is not a forum for voicing your opinions 
uncritically, but for engaging in reasoned, respectful dialogue based on the readings and activities.  
 
Cooperation: Because we will engage with technologies and quantitative methods, this course may 
include periods when the material is beyond your grasp. If this happens don’t hesitate to speak with me or 
engage a classmate who is more knowledgeable on a specific topic. 
 
Attendance: This course allows for two absences for any reason; no excuses necessary. Additional 
unexcused absences will cost 1/3 letter grade per infraction. Repeated lateness (3X) will add up to an 
absence. The university’s policy on Attendance Regulation (REG02.20.3) is available 
online https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03   
 
Late Assignments: I do not give extensions except in case of documented family or medical emergency, 
in line with the university Attendance regulation (NCSU 
REG02.20.03). https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03. Any assignment turned in late will be 
docked one full letter grade per calendar day. 
 
Incompletes: As stated by the university grading policy, "An IN must not be used...as a substitute for an 
F when the student's performance in the course is deserving of failing. An IN is only appropriate when the 

mailto:jcbivins@ncsu.edu
https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03
https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03


student's record in the course is such that the successful completion of particular assignments, projects, 
or tests missed as a result of a documented serious event would enable that student to pass the course." 
In this class, a grade of "IN" will only be given (1) in response to a written student request [email is fine] 
submitted to the instructor before 4:00 on the last day of classes; (2) at the instructor’s discretion; and (3) 
because of a serious interruption a student's work not caused by his/her own negligence. The university's 
policy on incompletes REG 02.50.03) can be found at http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-50-03. 
 
Statement for Students with Disabilities: Reasonable accommodations will be made for students with 
verifiable disabilities. In order to take advantage of available accommodations, students must register with 
Disability Services for Students at Suite 2221, Student Health Center, Campus Box 7509, 515-
7653. https://dso.dasa.ncsu.edu/ For more information on NC State's policy on working with students with 
disabilities, please see the Academic Accommodations for Students with Disabilities Regulation 
(REG02.20.1) http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-01. 
 
Academic Dishonesty: All students share responsibility to uphold standards of academic integrity and 
honesty. It is NCSU policy that all students sign the Pack Pledge on tests and assignments, indicating: “I 
have neither given nor received unauthorized aid on this test or assignment.” By signing your name on 
any classwork, it is assumed that you have thereby made this Pledge. For further information, you may 
consult the Code of Student Conduct Policy (POL11.35.1) at: http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01. 
 
N.C. State Polices, Regulations, and Rules (PRR): Students are responsible for reviewing the NC State 
University PRR’s which pertains to their course rights and responsibilities: 
 
 Equa l Opportunity a nd Non-Discrimination Policy Statement 
https://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-04- 25-05 with additional references 
at https://oied.ncsu.edu/equity/policies/ 
 
 Code  of S tude nt Conduct https ://policie s .ncs u.e du/policy/pol-11- 35-01 
 
 Gra de s  a nd Gra de  P oint Ave ra ge  https ://polic ie s .ncs u.e du/re gula tion/re g-02- 50-03 
 
 Cre dit-Only Courses https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02- 20-15 
 
 Audits  https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02- 20-04 
 
Students of Concern: https://studentsofconcern.ncsu.edu/classroom-syllabus 
 
Supporting Fellow Students in Distress: As members of the NC State Wolfpack community, we each 
share a personal responsibility to express concern for one another and to ensure that this classroom and 
the campus as a whole remains a healthy and safe environment for learning.  Occasionally, you may 
come across a fellow classmate whose personal behavior concerns or worries you, either for the 
classmate’s well-being or yours.  When this is the case, report this behavior to the NC State’s Students of 
Concern website:  http://go.ncsu.edu/NCSUcares.  Although you can report anonymously, it is preferred 
that you share your contact information so they can follow-up with you personally. 
 

http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-50-03
https://dso.dasa.ncsu.edu/
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-01
http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01
https://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-%2020-04
http://go.ncsu.edu/NCSUcares


Anti-Discrimination Statement: NC State University provides equality of opportunity in education and 
employment for all students and employees. Accordingly, NC State affirms its commitment to maintain a 
work environment for all employees and an academic environment for all students that is free from all 
forms of discrimination. Discrimination based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, 
disability, veteran status, or sexual orientation is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State 
University policy and will not be tolerated. Harassment of any person (either in the form of quid pro quo or 
creation of a hostile environment) based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, disability, 
veteran status, or sexual orientation also is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State University 
policy and will not be tolerated. Retaliation against any person who complains about discrimination is also 
prohibited.  
 NC State’s policies and regulations covering discrimination, harassment, and retaliation may be 
accessed at http://www.ncsu.edu/policies/campus_environ or http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op. Any person 
who feels that he or she has been the subject of prohibited discrimination, harassment, or retaliation 
should contact the Office for Equal Opportunity (OEO) at 515-3148. 
 NC State University provides equality of opportunity in education and employment for all students 
and employees. Accordingly, NC State affirms its commitment to maintain a work environment for all 
employees and an academic environment for all students that is free from all forms of discrimination. 
Discrimination based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or 
sexual orientation is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State University policy and will not be 
tolerated.  
 Harassment of any person (either in the form of quid pro quo or creation of a hostile environment) 
based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or sexual 
orientation also is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State University policy and will not be 
tolerated. Retaliation against any person who complains about discrimination is also prohibited. NC 
State’s policies and regulations covering discrimination, harassment, and retaliation may be accessed at 
http://www.ncsu.edu/policies/campus_environ or http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op.  
 Any person who feels that he or she has been the subject of prohibited discrimination, 
harassment, or retaliation should contact the Office for Equal Opportunity (OEO) at 515-3148. 
 
Class Evaluations: Online class evaluations will be available for students to complete during the last two 
weeks of class. Students will receive an email message directing them to a website where they can login 
using their Unity ID and complete evaluations. All evaluations are confidential; instructors will never know 
how any one student responded to any question, and students will never know the ratings for any 
particular instructors. 
• Evaluation website: https://classeval.ncsu.edu 
• Student help desk: classeval@ncsu.edu 
• More information about ClassEval: http://www2.acs.ncsu.edu/UPA/classeval/index.htm. 
 
Electronic Devices Policy: The course requires maximum participation, and this cannot happen if there 
are distractions by media interference. All cell phones must remain closed and off during class. Laptops 
can be used for note taking or reference to course related activities. If I notice that you are involved with 
viewing non-class material that will count as an absence. Don’t do it. Allowances will be made in 
accordance with Disability Service policies.  
 
Electronic Hosting statements: 
Students may be required to disclose personally identifiable information to other students in the course, 
via electronic tools like email or web-postings, where relevant to the course. Examples include online 
discussions of class topics, and posting of student coursework. All students are expected to respect the 
privacy of each other by not sharing or using such information outside the course. 
Electronically-hosted Components:  
https://wolfware.ncsu.edu/ 
https://nb.mit.edu/ 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ncsu.edu/policies/campus_environ
http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op
http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op
https://classeval.ncsu.edu/
mailto:classeval@ncsu.edu
http://www2.acs.ncsu.edu/UPA/classeval/index.htm
https://wolfware.ncsu.edu/
https://nb.mit.edu/


Course outcomes  
Having completed all course requirements, students should be able to: 
1. describe the biological techniques used in making transgenic plants, animals, and microbes. 
2. explain the basics of Mendelian genetics and crop/animal breeding 
3. identify what products of genetic engineering are currently commercialized and where. 
4. discuss what the economic, ecological, and cultural impacts have been of currently commercialized products of 

genetic engineering in different parts of the world. 
5. explain the basics of how products of genetic engineering are regulated in different parts of the world. 
6. discuss how different stakeholders impact the regulatory process. 
7. discuss factors that interact in determining a person’s trust in a new technology. 
8. discuss diverse approaches for researchers to gain public trust. 
9. Describe new genetic engineering technologies on the horizon and what the products of those technologies 

might be. 
10.  Discuss the ethical issues involved in animal and human genetic engineering.  

 
GEP Category Objectives 
 
HON 296-006 is part of the following General Education Programs: Interdisciplinary Studies 
 
GEP objective 1: Distinguish between the distinct approaches of two or more disciplines. 

• Course outcome: Students will distinguish between the critical analysis of Genetic Engineering 
by molecular biologists, economists, ecologists, STS scholars, lawyers, and others. 

• Means of assessment for outcome: Contributions to discussions and submission of writing 
assignments that summarize and reflect upon course readings. Ex: How and why do the authors 
of this week’s readings frame the potential impacts of genetically engineered fish? 

 
GEP objective 2: Identify and apply authentic connections between two or more disciplines. 

• Course outcome: Students will draw connections between diverse fields based on analysis of 
readings, workshops and discussions involving multiple fields.  

• Means of assessment for outcome: Contributions to discussions and submission of writing 
assignments which –compare and contrast the disciplines as well as how they support each 
others expertise. Ex. How do researchers and communications experts view the “deficit model” 
for public interfaces? What can they learn from each other? 

GEP objective 3: Explore and synthesize the approaches or views of two or more disciplines. 
• Course outcome:  Students will read articles and chapters in which authors from different 

disciplines assess specific products of genetic engineering. Students will bring these different 
perspectives together in their own synthetic analysis of the product. 

• Means of assessment for outcome: Students will use qualitative and quantitative approaches 
to examine the assumptions inherent in the articles they read and write essays that point out 
those assumptions, and assess those assumptions. They will then synthesize and defend their 
own assessment of the product. Ex. How do you reconcile the different assumptions of 
sociologists and economists in evaluating genetically engineered crops in developing countries? 

 
 
Disciplines that will be synthesized, connected, and/or considered in this course. 
How do you “know” that a specific genetic engineering process or product is good or bad, or something 
else? To fully understand and assess genetic engineering technologies and products requires that we 
bring in knowledge from a large number of disciplines. On the biological level, we will be considering 
information from Biochemistry, Molecular Genetics, Population Genetics, Ecology and Environmental 
Sciences. At the social sciences level, we will bring in information from Economics, Sociology, 
Psychology, and Anthropology. From the humanities we will be using insights from Rhetoric, Ethics, and 
Communication. 
 



Integrating multiple points of view into a cohesive understanding 
 Each discipline brings different knowledge and tools needed for developing and analyzing 
products and processes of genetic engineering. People who work in a specific discipline sometimes value 
the knowledge in that discipline over others. Based on the readings for the course and guests who 
describe their own work, you will see that in a very important sense each discipline brings us different 
“ways of knowing” that are all valid and inform each other. For example, some of the readings from the 
recent US National Academies’ report on genetically engineered crops focus on economic perspectives 
and others on sociological perspectives. Both provide ways of assessing the impacts of genetically 
engineered crops, but you will gain a richer understanding of genetically engineered crops by integrating 
both perspectives. Crop breeders and ecologist both study crop resilience to drought, but you will see that 
by working together, researchers in these two fields can make gains toward crop resilience that they 
could not make on their own. Similarly, you will learn that we never would have had good tools for genetic 
engineering if it weren’t for insights from natural historians and classical physiologists. At one time, risk 
analysis was considered to be a completely “science-based” process. Your readings will explain why the 
fields of psychology, communication, ethics and sociology are now integral to risk analysis. 
 Genetic Engineering is considered a “hot button” issue because there is a broad spectrum in the 
public from those who are highly critical of the process and products and those who view them positively. 
Typically, people mostly talk to others with similar perspectives. Through our discussions and interactions 
with guests, you will have an opportunity to gain by talking to informed people with very different 
perspectives on genetic engineering than your own. 
 
 
Course Assignments and Assessments: 
 
Participation and Discussion; You must show up well-prepared, on-line and in class, and be ready to 
read, write, speak and listen well.  
 
Classroom participation (20%) is evaluated on the following basis: 
A: Contributions in class are relatively frequent and reflect exceptional preparation. Consistently makes 
comments and asks questions that assist the learning of the class as a whole.. 
B: Contributions in class are relatively frequent and generally reflect thorough preparation. Often makes 
comments and asks questions that assist the learning of the class as a whole. Class activities are 
approached with seriousness and diligence. 
C: Contributions in class are infrequent but reflect adequate preparation. Rarely volunteers answers to 
questions. Infrequently asks questions, but they are appropriate and helpful to class.  
D: Participates little in class and often is unprepared. 
F: Contributions in class are disruptive of the academic environment. Class activities are approached 
without seriousness and in a way that is disruptive to others in class.  
 
Reading/Videos Questions and Comments (20%):  
Once or twice a week, you will typically be asked to submit two questions/comments on-line about the 
week’s readings/videos and also respond to one question/comment of another student. These questions 
and comments must be submitted by noon on the day of the class. These must demonstrate not only that 
you have read and understood the assigned texts, but also that you have reflected on them, raised 
questions about them, and attempted to situate them in the ongoing conversations we develop.  
 
A: Misses deadlines on contributions up to two times and contributions reflect exceptional preparation. 
Consistently makes comments and asks questions that assist the learning of the class as a whole. 
B: Misses deadlines on contributions up to four times. Contributions generally reflect thorough 
preparation. Often makes comments and asks questions that assist the learning of the class as a whole.  
C: Misses deadlines on contributions five to six times.  Contributions often do not show diligence. 
D: Misses deadlines on contributions seven or more times.  Contributions do not show diligence. 
F: Misses many deadlines and fails to contribute substantially. 
 
 



Two Midterms (15%): Your midterm exams will consist of a mix of questions with short and long answers 
asking you to demonstrate your command of the technical material in the readings. 
 
Final exam (20%): The final will involve essay questions that call on you to demonstrate your ability to 
think in a scholarly and personal manner about the subjects of the semester. 
  
Paper or project (25%): Due April 26th.  
Paper: You will write a 10-15 page paper (double-space 12pt times) wherein you 1) carefully critique a 
book, or 2) delve deeply into one GE topic. 
 Abstracts of paper topics must be approved by me by March 1st. 
 
Project: A project could involve one or more students. Projects could involve 1) Interdisciplinary analysis 
of a set of articles and books on a class topic, 2) Combined survey and focus group analysis of an issue 
addressed in class, 3) Other project approved by me. 
Abstracts of project topics must be approved by me by March 1st 

 

 
 
 
Grading of written work follows this basic template: 
A+ = Elegantly written or articulated, answers all aspects of a question, and anticipates criticism with 
persuasive argumentation. An A+ displays all of these traits and includes at least one aspect that raises 
the work above the level of most excellent college student efforts.  
A = product is truly excellent in almost all respects but possesses one or more flaws, such as failing to 
anticipate important critiques. 
B = Careful but not brilliantly written or articulated, addresses the question generally, and anticipates 
some critiques. A B+ has most of these traits but also includes a stand-out feature (e.g. especially original 
thinking), while a B- covers the basic expectations but also has one or more serious flaws. 
C = Shows evidence of inquiry into the subject but uneven success either in meeting expectations to 
address the question with evidence drawn from course assignments or in presenting a coherent 
argument. C-level work is hampered by unclear writing, insufficient command of the assigned readings, 
and arguments that do not stand up to close scrutiny. 
D = Minimally acceptable in that it counts as the completion of the assignment, but is carelessly written or 
articulated, displays no meaningful engagement with the sources, and/or lacks a clear argument. 
F = Fails to meet the most basic criteria. 
 
 
Grade Scale: (partial points above 0.49 will be rounded up) 
 
98-100: A+ 88-89: B+ 78-79: C+ 68-69: D+ 0-59: F 
93-97: A 83-87: B 73-77: C 63-67: D 
90-92: A- 80-82: B- 70-72: C- 60-62: D- 
 
 
Course Schedule 
(course schedule is subject to change with appropriate notification to students) 
 
1) Jan 9th Student introductions.  Also overview of course content and requirements, including 
 discussion of statement on “Productive, inclusive, ethical communication” 
            HW----Write a 500 word description of yourself. Write a 500 word description of your thoughts 
 about genetic engineering. Send both to Fred Gould via email. Fill out this survey 
 https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/SQXMCVN 
---All these assignments due by noon of Jan 11th—email to Fred_Gould@ncsu.edu --as a word document 
or just part of the main email-- 
 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/SQXMCVN
mailto:Fred_Gould@ncsu.edu


2) Jan 11th   Discussion of survey results in broader context 
 HW—watch Gattaca and videos on Punnett Squares and pedigrees  
 
3) Jan 16th Presentation on Mendelian genetics and discussion of the feasibility of Gattaca  
 HW—readings and films about embryo selection, general reading on ethics. 
 
4) Jan 18th Discussion of the ethics of embryo selection. 
 HW—watch The Incredible Shrinking Man and Spiderman (if you haven’t seen it) 
 Talk to at least four friends, family and acquaintances to get a sense of their understanding and 
 feelings about GMOs….and take good notes on content of conversation and facial/body 
 language. 
 
5) Jan 23rd Discussion of the origin of perspectives on GMOs (GE Crops) and discussion of why atomic 
 power and radiation are so prominent in Sci Fi movies. 
 HW— watch assigned videos and readings on GMOs –Take notes on the major 
 assumptions/conclusions of each. 
 
6) Jan 25th Discuss videos and readings on GMOs 
 HW— Search the internet for the most trustworthy videos on GE crops and foods 
  
7) Jan 30th Discuss what makes some information on the internet trustworthy 
 HW ---Read Introduction and Chapter 1 of “Merchants of Doubt”  
 
8) Feb 1st  Discussion of “Merchants of Doubt” chapters 
 HW  Small groups read other chapters in Merchants of Doubt” 
 
9) Feb 6th Presentation of chapters from “Merchants of Doubt” by each group 
 HW—Read Chapters 3 from “Genetically Engineered Crops: Experience and Prospects” 
                          --Genetically Engineered Crops Through 2015-- 
 
10) Feb 8th Discussion of Chapter 3 of GE Crops report  
 HW --- Prepare for exam 
  
11) Feb 13th Exam 
              HW--- More readings on DNA and Central Dogma of Biology 
 
12)  Feb 15th Presentation and discussion of DNA and Central Dogma of Biology 
 HW--- More readings on molecular biology 
 
13) Feb 20th More presentation and discussion of molecular biology 
 HW—Read Chapter 4 of GE Crops report 
 
14) Feb 22nd Discussion of agricultural and environmental impacts of GE crops  
                HW—Read Chapter 5 of GE Crops report 
 
15) Feb 27th Discussion of human health impacts of GE crops  
                HW— Read Chapter 6 of GE Crops report 
 
16) Mar 1st Discussion of socio-economic impacts of GE crops 
 HW—small groups will read other chapters from the GE crops report 
 
17) Mar 6th  Spring Break  
 
18) Mar 8th  Spring Break 
 
19) Mar 13th Presentation by small groups of specific chapters of GE crops report 



 HW—Readings about engineered microbes 
 
20) Mar 15th Discussion of engineered cheese, beer, and insulin 
 HW—Exam preparation 
 
21) Mar 20th  Exam 
 HW--Readings on engineered livestock and pets 
 
22) Mar 22nd Discussion of the genetics of animals and cloning  
 HW-Reading on genetic engineering to save endangered species and resurrect species 
 
23) Mar 27th Discussion of the future of conservation biology 
 HW- Readings on engineering mosquitoes to save lives 
 
24) Mar 29th  Discussion of what constitutes responsible conduct in international development. 
 HW—Watch Jurassic World  
 
25) Apr 3rd Discussion of the genetic basis for Jurassic World 
 HW- Readings on human gene editing versus gene therapy 
 
26) Apr 5th  Discussion of the genetic basis for human genetic engineering and its limits  
 HW—film and reading on transhumanism 
 
27) Apr 10th  Decisions in human gene editing 
 HW –Begin reading “The Honest Broker” –Chapters 1 and 2 
 
28) Apr 12th  Discussion of Chapters 1 and 2 
 HW—Read remainder of “The Honest Broker”  
 
29) Apr 17th Discussion of the roles of scientists in society 
 
30) Apr 19th  Preperation 
 
31) Apr 24th Presentations 

 

32) Apr 26th Presentations 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

HON 299 Course Syllabus
HON 299 – Music and the Celtic World

Section 001
SPRING 2017
3 Credit Hours

Course Description
   

   

   

In this course, students explore the diverse musics of the Celtic world, from cultural practices of the ancient
Celts to folk and popular traditions of Ireland, Scotland, Wales, Brittany, Galicia, Cape Breton, and the
United States. They investigate the origin and meanings of “Celtic music,” and study its diverse
instrumental, vocal, and dance traditions, and its varied performance practices, occasions, and purposes.
Through history, literature, poetry, spirituality, and mythology, students examine the realities and fictions
of the ancient and modern Celtic world. Through live and recorded music and dance performance, they 
consider the continuities of Celtic culture across time and space, and the significance of Celtic music today
in terms of cultural identity, tradition, and globalization.

Learning Outcomes
By the end of the course, students will demonstrate that they are able to:

1. Interpret and analyze music on the basis of its structural, stylistic, and aesthetic elements and its social
and historical contexts.

2. Identify and apply the basic concepts and terms used in musical investigation to specific musical
performances in Ireland, Scotland, and other "Celtic nations."

3. Distinguish and evaluate the roles of music in expressing social identity.

4. Articulate and critically evaluate ideas and conclusions on the meaning of "Celtic music" based on
evidence provided by authors.

5. Analyze the roles Celtic music and dance play in enhancing human social life.

Course Structure
Class meetings will include interactive lectures, class discussions, and class participation in singing and
dancing as directed by guest artists. Students are required to attend two on-campus music and dance
events outside of class.

Course Policies
Computers or other electronic devices may be used only when directed by the instructor to work on class
assignments. Expected class behavior includes: no sleeping, no talking unless class related, no eating or
drinking during class, and no working on assignments for other classes.

Instructors

1



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

Alison Arnold (aearnold) - Instructor
Email: aearnold@ncsu.edu
Phone: 919-515-7952
Office Location: Price Music Building, Rm. 209
Office Hours: By appointment

Course Meetings
Seminar

Days: TH
Time: 11:45am - 1:00pm
Campus: Main
Location: Honors Village Commons, Rm. 201
This meeting is required.

Course Materials
Textbooks

Focus: Irish Traditional Music - Sean Williams
Edition: 1st
ISBN: 978-041599147-6
Web Link: https://www.routledge.com/Focus-Irish-Traditional-Music/Williams/p/book/9780415991476
Cost: $54.95
This textbook is required.
The Táin: Translated from the old Irish epic Táin Bó Cúailnge - Ciaran Carson, transl.
Edition: 1st
ISBN: 978-0140455304
Cost: $13.85
This textbook is required.

Expenses
Music concert ticket - $5
This expense is required.
Contra dance attendance - $6
This expense is required.

Materials
None.

Requisites and Restrictions
Prerequisites

None.
Co-requisites

None.
Restrictions

Course restricted to University Honors Program students; others by permission of the UHP.

General Education Program (GEP) Information
GEP Category

Visual and Performing Arts
GEP Category Outcomes

1. Interpret and analyze music on the basis of its structural, stylistic, and aesthetic elements and its
social and historical contexts.

2

mailto:aearnold@ncsu.edu
https://www.routledge.com/Focus-Irish-Traditional-Music/Williams/p/book/9780415991476


North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

2. Identify and apply the basic concepts and terms used in musical investigation to specific musical
performances in Ireland, Scotland, and other "Celtic nations."

3. Distinguish and evaluate the roles of music in expressing social identity.
How This Course Will Fulfill GEP Category Outcomes

Course Outcome 1: Interpret and analyze music on the basis of its structural, stylistic, and aesthetic
elements and its social and historical contexts.

Means of Assessment

Students will respond to the following question on Writing Assignment #3:

Vocal music that emphasizes rhythm over melody, beat over lyrics, exists in various parts of the
Celtic world: lilting in Ireland, waulking songs and puirt-a-beul in Scotland, and kan ha diskan in
Brittany, for example. First, describe two of these types of song in terms of lyrics/syllables, rhythms,
melodies, musical form, and performance context (uses of music). Second, describe an example of
your own (in these same terms) in which rhythm is the primary focus of the music. In your view, why
does the rhythm overpower the lyrics?

 

Course Outcome 2: Identify and apply the basic concepts and terms used in musical investigation to
specific musical performances in Ireland, Scotland, and other "Celtic nations."

Means of Assessment

Students will answer the following questions on Writing Assignment #1:

Perhaps the two most common forms of music in the Irish and Scottish traditions are reels and jigs.
Describe the characteristics of each of these two musical forms in your own words. In Williams, Ch. 6,
the author discusses these two instrumental forms under the headings “Join the Session.” Why does
she then describe Airs under the heading “Don’t Join the Session”? What is an “Air” and why is this
considered inappropriate for a musical session?

 

Course Outcome 3: Distinguish and evaluate the roles of music in expressing social identity.

Means of Assessment

For their final assignment, students will carry out an individual research project consisting of a written
paper (minimum 2000 words) and a ten-minute presentation to the class. The assignment is to select
a topic related to Celtic music and/or dance, and to research and analyze the topic based on its
stylistic, aesthetic, and structural elements, and its socio-cultural and historical contexts. The project
may include field research, in which students interview a musician or dancer for example, or the
research may be purely library-based. A major goal of the research and analysis is to understand and
explain the meaning of "Celtic" in the chosen topic, both to the relevant artists and/or performers,
and to the student as the researcher. Students will examine the ways that the artist(s), art form, art
work, style, event, or scene expresses Celtic culture and identity. They will also consider the
reception and impact of the artist(s), music, dance, event, scene, etc. on modern art and society. In
researching a performance tradition, students might consider questions such as: What makes up a

3



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

music group/community/scene? What does it mean to be a "regular," a session player, a dancer?
From where do we draw creativity? Why do we perform, learn, teach? How do we listen? Why do we
celebrate live music over mediated music, or vice versa? Who is the "we" of a music tradition? In
researching a festival, a film, or other artwork, they might explore questions such as: What are the
Celtic roots or other connections with Celtic history and culture? How is traditional culture made
relevant to today's world? How do we express cultural identity through art, music, and dance? Why
are Celtic music and dance so widely popular and attractive in the 21st century?

GEP Co-requisites
Global Knowledge
GEP Co-requisite Outcomes

Articulate and critically evaluate ideas and conclusions on the meaning of "Celtic music" based on
evidence provided by authors.

Identify and apply the basic concepts and terms used in musical investigation to specific musical
performances in Ireland, Scotland, and other "Celtic nations."

Analyze the roles Celtic music and dance play in enhancing human social life.
How This Course Will Fulfill GEP Co-requisite Outcomes

Course Outcome 4: Articulate and critically evaluate ideas and conclusions on the meaning of "Celtic
music" based on evidence provided by authors.

Means of Assessment

Students will consider the following questions on Writing Assignment #1:

Sean Williams writes in Focus: Irish Traditional Music, “In the twenty-first century, [the term] “Celtic
music” has become a modern construction emerging from a perceived shared identity in opposition
to a dominant culture” (p.82). The cultural and musical traditions of this “shared identity” include
Irish, Scottish, Welsh, Cornish, Manx, Breton, and Galician. Drawing on your readings and class
discussions, what are the significant elements (historical, linguistic, artistic) that bring these regions
together under the rubric “Celtic”? Identify and explain.

 

Course Outcome 2: Identify and apply the basic concepts and terms used in musical investigation to
specific musical performances in Ireland, Scotland, and other "Celtic nations."

Means of Assessment

Students will respond to the following prompt on Writing Assignment #3:

Sean-nós is the old singing style of Ireland that continues today largely in the Gaeltacht
(Irish-speaking) areas. Far more widespread in the Celtic regions are English-language ballads and
songs. (a) Listen to these two performances of Irish sean-nós and English ballad, and compare the
two performances in terms of performance practice and singing style. Contrast the social contexts in
which the singing takes place, the emotional expression of the singers, the instrumental
accompaniment, and the vocal characteristics of the two singing styles. How are the two traditions
and social contexts similar and different? (b) In a separate paragraph, discuss some of the ways
learning and performing popular music today differs from musical practices in these older traditions.

4



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

 

Course Outcome 5: Analyze the roles Celtic music and dance play in enhancing human social
life.

Means of Assessment

Students will consider and respond to the following questions on Writing Assignment #2

The Táin Bó Cúailnge ("Cattle Raid of Cooley") is the longest and most important tale in the Ulster
Cycle of Irish mythology, and one of the greatest prose sagas of the ancient world. The tale contains
a number of references to musicians, songs, and poetic verse: for example, harpers (Carson, pp. 21,
26, 57); bards and poets (Carson, pp. 12-13, 123); and solo singing and chanting (Carson, pp. 26-27,
95, 97, 104, 124-127, 197-198). From your reading of this epic, what can we discern about the uses
of music and the roles it played in ancient Celtic society? Draw broadly on these and other references
in the text to discuss examples.

Transportation
This course will not require students to provide their own transportation. Non-scheduled class time for field
trips or out-of-class activities is NOT required for this class.

Safety & Risk Assumptions
None.

Grading
Grade Components

Compone
nt

Weigh
t

Details

Attendanc
e and parti
cipation

10% Regular attendance is required. Participation includes
completion of reading assignments and thoughtful
participation in class discussions, and engagement in
class activities.

Writing ass
ignments

60% Four short (750+ word) writing assignments during the
semester, each 15% of final grade. Note: Partial grades
will not be given for incomplete assignments. These will
be returned to you for completion.

Final
research
paper and 
presentati
on

30% The final research project consists of a 2000+ word
written paper (20%) and a ten-minute oral presentation
to the class (10%). Note: Partial grade will not be
given for an incomplete paper. This will be
returned to you for completion.

Letter Grades
This Course uses Standard NCSU Letter Grading Scale

97 ≤ A+ ≤ 100
93 ≤ A < 97
90 ≤ A- < 93
87 ≤ B+ < 90
83 ≤ B < 87

5



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

80 ≤ B- < 83
77 ≤ C+ < 80
73 ≤ C < 77
70 ≤ C- < 73
67 ≤ D

+
< 70

63 ≤ D < 67
60 ≤ D- < 63
0 ≤ F < 60

Requirements for Credit-Only (S/U) Grading
In order to receive a grade of S, students are required to take all exams and quizzes, complete all
assignments, and earn a grade of C- or better. Conversion from letter grading to credit only (S/U)
grading is subject to university deadlines. Refer to the Registration and Records calendar for deadlines
related to grading. For more details refer to http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-15.

Requirements for Auditors (AU)
Information about and requirements for auditing a course can be found at 
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-04.

Policies on Incomplete Grades
If an extended deadline is not authorized by the instructor or department, an unfinished incomplete
grade will automatically change to an F after either (a) the end of the next regular semester in which the
student is enrolled (not including summer sessions), or (b) the end of 12 months if the student is not
enrolled, whichever is shorter. Incompletes that change to F will count as an attempted course on
transcripts. The burden of fulfilling an incomplete grade is the responsibility of the student. The
university policy on incomplete grades is located at http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-50-3.
As stated by the university grading policy, "An IN must not be used...as a substitute for an F when the
student's performance in the course is deserving of failing. An IN is only appropriate when the student's
record in the course is such that the successful completion of particular assignments, projects, or tests
missed as a result of a documented serious event would enable that student to pass the course." In this
class, a grade of "IN" will only be given (1) in response to a written student request (e-mail is fine)
submitted to the instructor before 4:00 on the last day of classes; (2) at the instructor’s discretion; and
(3) because of a serious interruption a student's work not caused by his/her own negligence.

Late Assignments
Students must submit and upload to Moodle all assignments by their due date stated in the syllabus. If
students need to request an extension due to extenuating circumstances, they may do so by sending an
email to the instructor at least one day before the deadline, explaining the reason for the request. A
reply will be sent to the student before the deadline. If the request is considered valid and granted, there
will be no late penalty. Late work submitted without an emailed explanation will be marked down one
fraction of a letter grade (e.g., A to A-, B- to C+, etc.) per 24 hours, as counted from the deadline date
and time, with the first mark-down taken immediately. Absences due to serious illness or personal
emergency will be excused from this policy.

Attendance Policy
For complete attendance and excused absence policies, please see 
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03
Attendance Policy

Regular attendance in class is required. Students must be present for the entire class to be counted
present.

Absences Policy
All anticipated absences must be cleared with the instructor at least one week in advance. See the
NCSU Attendance Regulations for the definition of excused and unexcused absences, and for a list of

6

http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-15
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-04
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-50-3
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-03


North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

excusable absences. Students are allowed two unexcused absences without penalty. Each unexcused
absence after the second will lower your attendance/participation grade by 10%. Six or more
unexcused absences will result in an F in the course. In the event of an absence due to one of the
defined emergency situations, notification and documentation are required within a week after your
return to campus. There will be no penalty for excused absences.

Makeup Work Policy
For all absences, students are responsible for making up work missed. Students must contact the
instructor before, or as soon as possible after, the absence to determine the make-up work required
and the deadline for completing it.

Additional Excuses Policy
None.

Academic Integrity
Academic Integrity

Students are required to comply with the university policy on academic integrity found in the Code of
Student Conduct found at http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01
I fully expect all students to complete all assignments honestly. Students who violate University rules
on academic integrity are subject to disciplinary penalties, including the possibility of failure in the
course and/or dismissal from The University. Since such dishonesty harms the individual, all students,
and the integrity of The University, policies on academic integrity will be strictly enforced.

 

I assume that by putting your name on an assignment, you as a North Carolina State University
student are in compliance with the University Honor Pledge: “I have neither given nor received
unauthorized aid on this test or assignment.” All students should be aware of The University’s policy
on academic integrity, dishonesty, cheating, and plagiarism found in the Code of Student Conduct
Policy (see section 8: "Academic Misconduct").

Academic Honesty
See http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01 for a detailed explanation of academic honesty.
None.

Honor Pledge
Your signature on any test or assignment indicates "I have neither given nor received unauthorized
aid on this test or assignment."

Electronically-Hosted Course Components
Students may be required to disclose personally identifiable information to other students in the course,
via electronic tools like email or web-postings, where relevant to the course. Examples include online
discussions of class topics, and posting of student coursework. All students are expected to respect the
privacy of each other by not sharing or using such information outside the course.

Accommodations for Disabilities
Reasonable accommodations will be made for students with verifiable disabilities. In order to take
advantage of available accommodations, student must register with the Disability Services Office
(http://www.ncsu.edu/dso), 919-515-7653. For more information on NC State's policy on working with
students with disabilities, please see the Academic Accommodations for Students with Disabilities
Regulation at http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-01.

Non-Discrimination Policy
NC State University provides equality of opportunity in education and employment for all students and
employees. Accordingly, NC State affirms its commitment to maintain a work environment for all

7

http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01
http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-11-35-01
http://www.ncsu.edu/dso
http://policies.ncsu.edu/regulation/reg-02-20-01


North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

employees and an academic environment for all students that is free from all forms of discrimination.
Discrimination based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status,
or sexual orientation is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State University policy and will not
be tolerated. Harassment of any person (either in the form of quid pro quo or creation of a hostile
environment) based on race, color, religion, creed, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or
sexual orientation also is a violation of state and federal law and/or NC State University policy and will
not be tolerated. Retaliation against any person who complains about discrimination is also prohibited.
NC State's policies and regulations covering discrimination, harassment, and retaliation may be
accessed at http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-04-25-05 or http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op/. Any person
who feels that he or she has been the subject of prohibited discrimination, harassment, or retaliation
should contact the Office for Equal Opportunity (OEO) at 919-515-3148.

Course Schedule
NOTE: The course schedule is subject to change.

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 1 — 01/10/2017 - 01/12/2017
Tu. Jan. 10: Introduction and Overview

Th. Jan. 12: The Celts - History and Culture

Reading: Nigel Pennick. 1997. "Introduction to Celtic Culture." In The Sacred World of the
Celts. Rochester, VT: Inner Traditions International, pp. 8-25. [On reserve]

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 2 — 01/17/2017 - 01/19/2017
INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC

Tu. Jan. 17: Ireland; Traditional Irish Music

Reading: Sean Williams. 2010. Focus: Irish Traditional Music. New York: Routledge, pp. 3-17, 129-155.

 

Th. Jan. 19: Ireland. Guest musicians - Southwind Celtic Trio (Irish flute, Irish harp, cello)

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 3 — 01/24/2017 - 01/26/2017
Tu. Jan. 24: Scotland. Guest musician - Scottish Highland bagpiper

Reading: Williams, pp. 81-90.

 

Th. Jan. 26: Celtic Britain (Wales, Northumberland, Cornwall, Isle of Man) and Celtic Western Europe
(Brittany, Galicia)

Reading: Williams, pp. 91-102.

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 4 — 01/31/2017 - 02/02/2017
CELTIC MYTHOLOGY AND FOLKLORE

Tu. Jan. 31: Tales and Legends: The Táin

Readings: Ciaran Carson, transl. 2009. The Táin. Translated from the old Irish Epic Táin Bó Cúailnge.
London and New York: Penguin Classics;

8

http://policies.ncsu.edu/policy/pol-04-25-05
http://www.ncsu.edu/equal_op/


North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

Williams, pp. 25-36.

 

Th. Feb. 2: The Celtic Otherworld; The Secret of Roan Inish (1994 film)

Reading: Karen Ralls-MacLeod. 2000. Music and the Celtic Otherworld: From Ireland to
Iona. Edinburgh: Polygon at Edinburgh, pp. 25-51. [On reserve]

Writing Assignment #1: Instrumental Music

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 5 — 02/07/2017 - 02/09/2017
CELTIC SPIRITUALITY AND BARDIC TRADITIONS

Tu. Feb. 7: Celtic Gods; Seasonal Festivals

Readings: Pennick, "The Sacred Year," pp. 97-109;

Barry Cunliffe. 1993. "Religion and Mystery." In The Celtic World. New York: St. Martin's Press, pp.
68-99. [On reserve]

 

Th. Feb. 9: Druids, Bards, and Bardic Poetry; Turlough O'Carolan

Readings: Cunliffe, "The Druids," pp. 106-110. [On reserve]

Williams, pp. 48-52.

Writing Assignment #1 due, Th. Feb. 8, 11:55pm

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 6 — 02/14/2017 - 02/16/2017
VOCAL MUSIC

Tu. Feb. 14: Irish Sean-Nós Singing

Reading: Williams, pp. 159-79.

 

Th. Feb. 16: Irish (Gaelic) Song. Guest singer

Reading: Williams, pp. 179-86.

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 7 — 02/21/2017 - 02/23/2017
Tu. Feb. 21: English- and Welsh-language Songs and Ballads

Reading: Williams, pp. 187-212.

 

Th. Feb. 23: Scottish Gaelic Song; Breton Kan Ha Diskan

9



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

Reading: Michael Newton. "Scottish Gaelic Song Traditions." Blog post, Sept. 15, 2013.

Writing Assignment #2: Vocal Music

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 8 — 02/28/2017 - 03/02/2017
DANCE

Tu. Feb. 28: Irish Step Dance. Guest Irish step dancer

Reading: Williams, pp. 218-28.

 

Th. Mar. 2: Scottish Dance. Guest Scottish Highland dancer

Writing Assignment #2 due, Th. Mar. 1, 11:55pm

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 9 — 03/07/2017 - 03/09/2017
SPRING BREAK - No classes

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 10 — 03/14/2017 - 03/16/2017
 

Tu. Mar. 14: Welsh, Breton, and Galician dance

 

CELTIC MUSIC IN NORTH AMERICA

 

Th. Mar. 16: Scottish and Irish Immigration to North America

 

Reading: Fiona Ritchie and Doug Orr. 2014. "Crossing." In Wayfaring Strangers: The Musical Voyage from Scotland and Ulster to Appalachia. Chapel Hill: University of North Carolina Press, pp. 104-128.

 

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 11 — 03/21/2017 - 03/23/2017
Tu. Mar. 21: Traditional Music Scene in Cape Breton, Canada

 

Th. Mar. 23: Music Sessions, Summer Schools, and Festivals

Reading: Williams, pp. 17-24, 103-28.

Writing Assignment #4: Dance, and Celtic Music in North America

Final Research Project assigned

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 12 — 03/28/2017 - 03/30/2017
CELTIC CHRISTIANITY

10



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

Tu. Mar. 28: Celtic Christianity; The Book of Kells

Readings: Pennick, "The Celtic Church," pp. 82-95. [On reserve]

Williams, pp. 36-48.

 

Th. Mar. 30: The Secret of Kells (2009 film)

Writing Assignment #4 due, Th. Mar. 29, 11:55pm

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 13 — 04/04/2017 - 04/06/2017
MUSICIANS

Tu. Apr. 4: Ceili Bands; The Boys and a Girl from County Clare (2003 film)

 

Th. Apr. 6: Celtic Musicians, Singers, Bands, and Supergroups - a case study in Brittany

Reading: Desi Wilkinson. 2003. "'Celtitude,' Professionalism, and the Fest Noz in Traditional Music in
Brittany." In Celtic Modern: Music at the Global Fringe, eds. Martin Stokes and Philip Bohlman.
Lanham, MD: Scarecrow Press, pp. 219-56. [On reserve]

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 14 — 04/11/2017 - 04/13/2017
NEW CONTEXTS FOR MUSIC AND DANCE

Tu. Apr. 11: The Celtic Revivals and the Recording Industry

Readings: Michael Newton. "The Fallacies of 'Celtic Music': Or, Is there such a thing as 'Celtic Music'?"
Blog post, Sept. 15, 2013;

Williams, pp. 213-18, 228-36.

 

Th. Apr. 13: Transmission and Traditional Music Education - a case study in Scotland

Reading: Peter Symon. 2003. "'You Cannae Take Your Music Stand into a Pub': A Conversation with
Stan Reeves about Traditional Music Education in Scotland." In Celtic Modern, pp. 257-74. [On
reserve}

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 15 — 04/18/2017 - 04/20/2017
Tu. Apr. 18: Celtic Rock, Rolk Rock, and Punk

Reading: Sean Campbell and Gerry Smyth. 2005. Beautiful Day: Forty Years of Irish Rock. Cork:
Atrium (Cork University Press), pp. 1-4, 21-23, 41-43, 56-59, 97-99, 112-14, 152-55. [On reserve]

 

Th. Apr. 20: Celtic Hip Hop

11



North Carolina State University Course Syllabus
HON 299 - 001 - Music and the Celtic World

Seminar TH 11:45am - 1:00pm — Week 16 — 04/25/2017 - 04/27/2017
Tu. Apr. 25: Final Presentations.

Final Research Project due on date of final class presentation

 

Th. Apr. 27: Final Presentations.

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

12

http://www.tcpdf.org

	CUE Agenda 3.24.2017
	Minutes 2.17.2017 CUE
	HON 293 001
	Syllabus

	HON 295 001
	Syllabus

	HON 296 001
	Syllabus

	HON 296 002
	Syllabus

	HON 296 003
	Syllabus

	HON 296 004
	Syllabus

	HON 296 005
	Syllabus

	HON 296 006
	Syllabus

	HON 299 001
	Syllabus


